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 Хђчешь хлЎба (сѕра)?         Do you want some bread (cheese)? 
 
Шѓра 1 Хђчешь хлЎба (сѕра)? Do you want some bread (cheese)? 

НЌдя 2  
3 

Нет, спасЏбо, я уже сытЌ.  Я тђлько что сѓпа 
поЎла. 

No, thanks.  I’m already full.  I just ate some 
soup. 

Шѓра 4 А чЌю хђчешь?  Would you like some tea? 

НЌдя 5  
6 

Нет, спасЏбо.  Я сок пью.  У менј остЌлся 
цЎлый стакЌн сђка. 

No, thanks.  I’m drinking juice.  I have a whole 
glass of juice left (remaining). 

Шѓра 7 Какђгo сђка, јблочного? (Of) what kind of juice, apple? 

НЌдя 8  
9 

Нет, апельсЏнового.  Я нашлЌ в холодЏльнике 
бутѕлку апельсЏнового сђка вђзле молокЌ. 

No, orange.  I found a bottle of orange juice 
next to the milk in the fridge. 

Шѓра 10 
11 
12 

Ты пьёшь апельсЏновый сок?  Я же купЏл егђ 
для моЎй любЏмой тёти!  ОнЌ ни рЌзу не 
прђбовала апельсЏнового сђка! 

You’re drinking the orange juice?  I bought it 
for my favorite aunt!  She’s never tried orange 
juice. 

НЌдя 13 
14 

Как іто «ни рЌзу»?  Откѓда онЌ?  Из СибЏри, что 
ли? 

What do you mean “never”?  Where is she 
from?  (From) Siberia, or something? 

Шѓра 15 
16 
17 

Нет, онЌ из Њжной (СЎверной) КаролЏны.  Её 
родЏтели почемѓ-то терпЎть не мђгут 
апельсЏновый сок. 

No, she’s from South (North) Carolina.  Her 
parents for some reason can’t stand orange 
juice. 

НЌдя 18 КЌждый схђдит с умЌ по свђему. To each his own. 
 
Словарь 
 
1 сыр cheese 

5 остЌн+...ся be remaining  (Use the past tense for now. Be sure to make the verb agree with the 
subject.) 

7 јблочный apple adjective 

8 апельсЏновый 
апельсЏн 

orange adjective 
orange (These words refer only to the fruit.  The color orange is орЌнжевый) 

9 вђзле + genitive next to; alongside 

15 сЎверный  
їжный  
востђчный 
зЌпадный 

northern; North (with states, as in СЎверныая КаролЏна) 
southern; South (Њжная Дакђта) 
eastern; East 
western; West (ЗЌпадная ВиргЏня) 
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РодЏтельный падЎж  (Genitive Case) 

14.A Genitive Singular: Forms 
 

Masculine and Neuter 
ADJECTIVES AND NOUNJECTIVES NOUNS  

{O}го (-ого / -его) {A} (-а / -я) 
*{U} (-у / -ю) 

* See 14.Б for discussion of genitives in {U}. 
 

ИменЏтельный РодЏтельный 
мой нђвый сЏний стол 
наш плохђй профЎссор 
ітот хорђший учЏтель 
чей словЌрь? 
СЌшин послЎдний фильм 
моё стЌрое сЏнее мѕло 
іто дорогђе рѓсское винђ 
вЌше высђкое здЌние 
 
какђе красЏвое Џмя 
хорђшее врЎмя 

моегђ нђвого сЏнего столЌ 
нЌшего плохђго профЎссора 
ітого хорђшего учЏтеля 
чьегђ словарј? 
СЌшиного послЎднего фЏльма 
моегђ стЌрого сЏнего мѕла 
ітого дорогђго рѓсского винЌ 
вЌшего высђкого здЌния 
 
какђго красЏвого Џмени 
хорђшего врЎмени 

 
 

Feminine 
ADJECTIVES AND NOUNJECTIVES NOUNS  

{O}й (-ой / -ей) {I} (includes Nouns in ь) 
 

ИменЏтельный РодЏтельный 
мој нђвая сЏняя машЏна 
нЌша плохЌя кђмната 
іта хорђшая кѓхня 
чья большЌя лђшадь? 
їжная СибЏрь 
МЌшина послЎдняя кнЏга 
дјдя / дЎдушка / МЏша / мужчЏна 
 
мој мать  
нЌша дочь 

моЎй нђвой сЏней машЏны 
нЌшей плохђй кђмнаты 
ітой хорђшей кѓхни 
чьей большђй лђшади? 
їжной СибЏри 
МЌшиной послЎдней кнЏги 
дјди / дЎдушки / МЏши / мужчЏны 
 
моЎй мЌтери 
нЌшей дђчери  
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Put the following noun phrases into the genitive singular.  Use Серёжа стоЏт ђколо as an intro: 
 
1. мой большђй дом 2. нЌша нђвая сЏняя машЏна 3. их огрђмное здЌние 

4. какђе-то высђкое дЎрево 5. мЌленькая корЏчневая лђшадь 6. твой невЎжественный дјдя 

7. трЎтий крЌсный холодЏльник 8. однЌ извЎстная актрЏса 9. ітот чудЌк 

10. вЌше общежЏтие 11. мой чђкнутый учЏтель 12. послЎдняя дверь 
 

14.Б Masculine Genitive Singular Nouns in {U} 
 
A number of masculine (but not neuter) nouns have an alternative genitive singular form in {U}.  We have 
already seen ни рЌзу never, not a single time, which we noted was the genitive of masculine раз.  And we saw Џз 
дому a few lessons ago.  Another common one is чЌю, which we’ll discuss below. 
 
In some instances you can use either the genitive in {A} or {U}.  Elsewhere, however, you have no choice.  So, 
only ни рЌзу is possible, not ни рЌза.  We’ll point these out as we go along.   
 
 

Two goals with genitive in {U}: 
 

1) Try to incorporate ни рЌзу into your speech (it’s quite useful).  There are also a few other useful 
phrases with genitive in {U}, which we’ll see later in the course.  

2) Be able to recognize these nouns when reading.  Don’t be fooled by the {U} ending!  It’s not always 
masculine/neuter dative singular or feminine accusative singular.  If you don’t recognize the word, 
look at the context and decide what case makes sense – this will also help you find the word in the 
dictionary. 

 
 

14.В Uses of the Genitive Case 
 
Recall that the genitive is used after more prepositions and in more different functions than any other case in 
Russian.  Here are some of the most common uses of the genitive: 
 
14.В.1  Genitive as ‘Of’ 
 
In many cases, the bare genitive (with no preposition) corresponds to an English phrase containing of.   
 

На столЎ стоЏт бутѕлка хорђшего бЎлого винЌ. On the table is (standing) a bottle of good white 
wine. 

ПрЎзидент нЌшего университЎта мнђго 
зарабЌтывает. 

The president of our university earns a lot. 

ЦенЌ молокЌ в ТрЎнтоне ниже, чем в ПрЏнстоне. The price of milk in Trenton is lower than in 
Princeton. 

У менј остЌлся цЎлый стакЌн плохђй вђдки. I have a whole glass of bad vodka left. 

Ђвтор ітой пьЎсы ни чертЌ не понимЌет. The author of this play doesn’t understand squat. 
 
If you want to impress your friends, you can tell them that you have covered the adnominal genitive.   



 Грамматика 14-й урок 

14-4 

This of use of the genitive can also be used to express possession.  Recall that for first names that do not end in 
{A}, as well as for all other persons/titles, only the genitive is possible to express possession.  So, you cannot use 
the suffix -ин-, as in СЌшин отЎц for names like ВЌдик or “titles” like мой брат, егђ женЌ, наш президЎнт 
etc.  Instead you must put the noun phrase in the genitive following the thing possessed.  (In poetry you may see a 
possessive genitive phrase preceding of the noun.) 
 

Брат мђего дрѓга ђчень лїбит јблочный сок. My friend’s brother (The brother of my friend) 
really likes apple juice. 

МЌть нЌшего профЎссора чЌсто Ўздит за гранЏцу. Our professor’s mother often travels abroad. 

СестрЌ Бђриса ЛеонЏдовича − инженЎр. Boris Leonidovich’s sister is an engineer. 

Кот нЌшей бЌбушки лїбит спать на кровЌти. Our grandmother’s cat likes to sleep on the bed. 
 
 
14.В.1a  The “Frozen” Genitive  
 
Recall that the noun in the of phrase is frozen (in the genitive).  It makes no difference what case the main noun is 
in.  Thus, in the examples below, the noun сестрЌ appears in all six cases, but моегђ любЏмого дјди stays 
frozen in the genitive: 
 

Здесь рабђтает сестрЌ моегђ любЏмого дјди. My favorite uncle’s sister works here. 

Я влюбЏлся в сестрѓ моегђ любЏмого дјди. I fell in love with my favorite uncle’s sister. 

Он жил блЏзко от сестрѕ моегђ любЏмого дјди. He lived near my favorite uncle’s sister. 

Мы говорЏли о сестрЎ моегђ любЏмого дјди. We were talking about my favorite uncle’s sister. 

Я ђчень завЏдую сестрЎ моегђ любЏмого дјди. I really envy my favorite uncle’s sister. 

Все смеїтся над сестрђй моегђ любЏмого дјди. Everyone is laughing at my favorite uncle’s sister. 
 
 

ПереведЏте на рѓсский 

1. He ate (up) a small piece of French cheese. 2. She drank (up) a big glass of bad vodka.  

3. We bought a large bottle of apple juice. 4. I stole a small bottle of orange juice. 

5. I met the author of the novel War and Peace. 6. She was dreaming about composer композЏтор of 
this symphony симфђния. 

7. My girlfriend’s father works like a dog. 8. His uncle’s dog is named Lajka ЛЌйка. 

9. (They) stole Vadik’s new car. 10. The mayor мэр of Paris is going crazy. 
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14.В.2  Prepositions That Govern the Genitive  
 
Last year we saw the following prepositions that govern the genitive: 
 

а) из from (a place) 
ОнЌ из сЎверного КанзЌса. She’s from northern Kansas. 

Мој бЌбушка из Њжной Дакђты. My grandmother is from South Dakota. 

б) от from (a person) (Often with недалекђ / блЏзко от) 

Я получЏл письмђ от твоегђ дЎдушки. I got a letter from your grandfather. 

ОнЌ рабђтает недалекђ от извЎстного ресторЌна. She works not far from a famous restaurant. 

в) с from  
Мы идём с пђчты. We’re coming back from the post office. 

Они ещё не вернѓлись с рабђты. They already returned from work. 

We saw the preposition с used with the genitive in the following fixed expressions: 

С однђй сторонѕ, он интерЎсный пЌрень, а с 
другђй сторонѕ, он такђй нахЌл. 

On the one hand, he’s a good-looking guy, but on 
the other hand, he’s such a jerk. 

УмерлЌ бЌбушка со сторонѕ отцЌ. My grandmother on my father’s side died. 

Я с умЌ схожѓ.  (Nominative is ум) I’m going crazy. 

д) ђколо near(ly) (place and time) 

Я живѓ ђколо егђ бѕвшей женѕ. I live near his ex-wife. 

Он плЌкал ђколо чЌса. He cried for nearly an hour. 

е) без without 
Я не могѓ жить без хорђшего чёрного хлЎба. I can’t live without good black bread. 

Без МЏти бѕло скѓчно. Without Mitya it was boring. 

ё) из-за because of; due to 

ОнЌ стЌла пить из-за мѓжа. She started to drink because of her husband. 

Мы не пошлЏ из-за дождј. We didn’t go because of the rain. 

ж) крђме except (for) 

Все крђме её млЌдшей сестрѕ пЏли пЏво. Everyone except her younger sister drank beer. 

Мне понрЌвились все фЏльмы крђме «ТитЌника» I liked all the films except Titanic. 
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з) пђсле after  (Recall that with clauses you must use пђсле тогђ, как...) 

Пђсле обЎда мы пошлЏ в кинђ. After dinner we went to the movies. 

Пђсле экзЌмена он заплЌкал After the exam he burst out crying. 

Пђсле тогђ, как он переЎхал, мы забѕли о нём. After he moved, we forgot about him. 

и) до before; until (Recall that with clauses you must use до тогђ, как...) 

До урђка я дђлжен занимЌться. I have to study before class. 

ОнЏ бѓдут зЌняты до средѕ. They’re going to be busy until Wednesday. 

До тогђ, как он стал президЎнтом, он был чЎстный. Before he became President, he was honest. 

й) у by; at (someone’s place) 

РЌньше я жил у бЌбушки. I used to live at my grandmother’s. 

Почемѓ он всегдЌ стоЏт у окнЌ? Why does he always stand by the window? 

к) для for (the sake of) 
ОнЌ дЎлает всё для нас. She does everything for us. 

Я купЏл ітот гЌлстук для моегђ дјди. I bought this tie for my uncle. 

  
 
 
Here’s another (brand new!) preposition that (always) takes the genitive: 
 
л) вђзле next to; alongside 
 

МЏтя стојл вђзле стенѕ и красЏво курЏл. Mitya stood next to the wall and smoked 
attractively. 

Кђжаное крЎсло стоЏт вђзле пЏсьменного столЌ. The leather armchair is (standing) next to the 
desk. 

 

 

1. I’m from South Dakota. 2. In the fridge there’s a bottle of apple juice standing 
next to the milk. 

3. I saw all his plays except the last (one). 4. Kira used to live with her grandfather. 

5. Before I met you, I thought you were a strange 
bird. 

6. I’m coming from the doctor’s. 

7. I can’t live without the genitive case! 8. Everyone except my (male) cousin plays chess. 

9. My desk is standing next to the bookcase. 10. After Misha got used to classes, he began to go to 
The Street™. 
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11.В.1  Partitive Genitive (New) 
 
The genitive (without any preposition) can be used with nouns that denote substances to convey the meaning 
some.  This is officially known as the partitive genitive, in case anyone ever asks you.  Probably the most 
common use of the partitive genitive is after the verb want, though you also find it with other verbs, such as buy.  
Here are some examples of the partitive genitive: 
 
 

Хђчешь пЏва? Do you want some beer? 

Я хочѓ шоколЌда. I want some chocolate. 

Вы хотЏте хлЎба? Do you want some bread? 

Я хочѓ колбасѕ. I want some mystery meat. 

ОнЌ купЏла сЌхара. She bought some sugar. 
 
With the noun чай, often the partitive genitive uses the {U} ending discussed above: чЌю. The {U} ending is 
possible on a few other “food” nouns, but some Russians find these forms “substandard”: 
 

Хђчешь чЌю? Do you want some tea? 

Хђчешь сѓпу? (more colloquial) Do you want some soup? 

Хђчешь сђку? (more colloquial) Do you want some juice? 
 

 

1. Do you want some tea? 2. I want some cheese. 

3. Who wants some mystery meat? 4. Misha wants some beer. 

5. Do you want some wine? 6. Who wants some juice? 

7. I want some milk. 8. Do you want some sugar? 
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 УпражнЎние 1  Fill in the blanks: 
 

 delicious apple my younger brother our favorite song 

Singular 

Nom 

   

Gen 

 

 

  

Plural 

Nom 

   

 
 
 

 УпражнЎние 2  Fill in the blanks – provide prepositions: 
 

1. Я получЏл письмђ ____________ мо_____________ дрѓг____________. 

2. МЏша рѓсский.  Он __________ Москв_______________. 

3. Все бѕли там _____________________ ВЎр_________. 

4. --Где ты был?  -- Я сейчЌс идѓ ______________ пђчт___________. 

5. Я не могѓ жить ______________ хорђш______________ мѓзык__________________. 

6. КнЏжная пђлка стоЏт ______________________ телевЏзор____________________. 
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 УпражнЎние 3  Put the noun phrases into the correct form 

 
1.  Љто подЌрок для (my Russian professor) ___________________________________________________. 

2.  Я из (a small southern state) ______________________________________________________________. 

3.  Где машЏна (my mother) ________________________________________________________________? 

4.  Я купЏл огрђмное колЏчество (German beer) _______________________________________________. 

5.  Как делЌ у (your younger sister) __________________________________________________________? 

 
 

 УпражнЎние 4  ПереведЏте на рѓсский: 
 
1. Do you want some tea? 

 

 

2. There’s a whole glass of orange juice left (remaining). 

 

 

3. Do you want some ice cream?  (think!) 

 


